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Monday, March 7, 2022
--- On commencing at 9:30 a.m.

MR. MILLAR:  Good morning, everyone.  Welcome to day two of our technical conference in EB-2020-0293. I am your surprise host for day two, Michael Millar.  I don't think we need to do appearances again, because we have the same folks we had Friday, or at least an appearance was entered for them.

I understand we have a couple of preliminary matters, and then after that I will turn it to Mr. Shepherd to introduce his witness panel, and I believe Mr. Ladanyi is up with questioning.

So I do understand there are some preliminary matters to deal with.  Could I turn it over to you, Mr. Keizer.


Preliminary Matters:


MR. KEIZER:  Thank you.  Thank you, Mr. Millar.  Yes, at the end of the day Friday there was a -- and actually, during the course of the day there were two areas that Enbridge had indicated they would consider over the lunch hour, and because of the schedule we had a pretty compressed lunch hour and weren't able to do so.

So we did consider that over the weekend and are now able to address the two issues that were raised, and they were both questions that were raised by FRPO and Mr. Quinn.

The first reference we dealt with -- we don't need to bring it up.  I will explain it -- is at page 28 of the transcript, where we indicated we would take it away over lunch.  It was in respect of the code changes and the reasons for the code change that was alluded to by Mr. Quinn, and we would -- we indicated that, although we were going to deal with the nature of the replacement that was done, we would also be considering, but the refusal with respect to the code change we would consider further.

So my understanding is, is that, one, as was helpfully advised by Mr. Ladanyi during the technical conference, that code change had happened quite some time ago, although Enbridge is prepared to have a look to see if it can actually determine the reasons for the code change, assuming the records actually exist.  They may not, or the information may not be available.  But they will assert efforts to do so.

To the extent that they are able to obtain it, they will provide it.  If they can't be, we will explain why they can't.

MR. MILLAR:  Sorry to interrupt, Mr. Keizer.  I take it that -- is that an undertaking?

MR. KEIZER:  That would be the undertaking, yes.

MR. MILLAR:  Okay.  So I will mark that as JT2.1.
UNDERTAKING NO. JT2.1:  TO ATTEMPT TO DETERMINE THE REASONS FOR THE CODE CHANGE AND TO PROVIDE THEM; IF THEY CAN'T, TO EXPLAIN WHY.


MR. KEIZER:  Right.  And then the second issue that was also to be -- go further over lunch, considered over lunch, but was not, was with respect to technical reports that underpin the various approvals that were given internally by Enbridge with respect to the pipeline and the proceeding with the pipeline.

And Mr. Quinn asked us to go back and check to see if there were any other additional technical reports.  We had indicated that, you know, the information was provided through the asset management plan and also through all of the reports that were presented within the evidence, but he asked that we go back and have a look to see if there were other technical reports in respect of this of the pipeline and those approvals that were given, and Enbridge will go back and have a look to see if there are anything else that relates to those approvals for the decision to proceed with the pipeline.

MR. QUINN:  Thank you, Mr. Keizer.  If I may, Mr. Millar, just a clarification on that last one.  The first one, that's great.  Second one, what we're concerned about is technical reports in support of the approval.  So internal reports -- and I keep using the word "report", but documentation that was provided by technical people to management to get approval for the project, is that included in the scope of what you are going to undertake to review, Mr. Keizer?

MR. KEIZER:  Yeah.  I think it would be the basis of a technical report which was relied upon for purposes of the approval.

MR. QUINN:  Okay.  Then I think we're on the same page that way, so thank you.  I appreciate you reviewing those undertakings.  Thank you, Mr. Millar.

MR. MILLAR:  Okay.  So I will mark that second one as well.  Mr. Keizer, could you just give me a quick -- a brief description of the second one again, JT2.2?

MR. MILLAR:  Okay.  So that will be JT2.2.
UNDERTAKING NO. JT2.2:  TO SEE IF THERE ARE ANY ADDITIONAL TECHNICAL REPORTS OR DOCUMENTATION RELIED UPON FOR PURPOSES OF A DECISION TO PROCEED WITH THE PIPELINE.

And does that conclude the preliminary matters?

MR. KEIZER:  It does from Enbridge's perspective.

MR. QUINN:  Yes, thank you, Mr. Millar.

MR. MILLAR:  Okay.  Great.  Mr. Shepherd, may I turn it over to you to introduce your witness panel?

MR. SHEPHERD:  Sure.  We have two witnesses.  They are presented by the School Energy Coalition, Pollution Probe, and the City of Ottawa.  The first is Michael Fletcher, and Mr. Fletcher is the climate change and resiliency project manager -- you've got to change your name, Mike -- of the City of Ottawa.  And the second is Daniel Dicaire, who is the energy and sustainability manager at Ottawa Community Housing.

My witnesses are available for questioning.
SCHOOL ENERGY COALITION, POLLUTION PROBE, CITY OF OTTAWA (THE SPONSORS) - PANEL 2
Daniel Dicaire

Mike Fletcher


MR. MILLAR:  Thank you, Mr. Shepherd.  And Mr. Ladanyi, I have you up first.  Are you ready to go?

MR. LADANYI:  Yes, I am.
Examination by Mr. Ladanyi:

MR. LADANYI:  Good morning, panel, and good morning, everyone else who is listening.  My name is Tom Ladanyi.  I am a consultant representing Energy Probe in OEB proceedings, including this one.

And late on Saturday I sent a list of interrogatories, and they're all Energy Probe interrogatories, to the sponsors that I will be asking clarification questions about.

And I also sent a link to a printout from a web page that I will not be actually asking the witnesses to agree to, just to acknowledge that there is opposition in Ottawa to what they're planning.

So may I have an exhibit number for the printout from the web page, please.

MR. SHEPHERD:  I object to that.  Who is the author of the web page material?

MR. LADANYI:  It is a group called  Wind Concerns Ottawa, as far as I know.  They're --


MR. SHEPHERD:  Who --


MR. LADANYI:  And I am not -- this is not evidence.  I am just saying that I wanted to show, and any amount -- anything can be brought in to show there is opposition -- I could have brought in a placard.  I decided that would be the simplest way to show there is opposition, because I think you are trying to show this is all a done deal, and it is definitely not a done deal.  So that is my plan.

MR. SHEPHERD:  The witnesses are not claiming there is no opposition --


MR. LADANYI:  So let me tell you something else, Mr. Shepherd --


MR. SHEPHERD:  Don't interrupt me, Mr. Ladanyi.

MR. LADANYI:  Okay.  Go ahead.

MR. SHEPHERD:  I am talking.

MR. LADANYI:  Okay.  I thought you were finished.

MR. SHEPHERD:  I want to finish.  The witnesses are not claiming that there is no opposition, and we're happy to stipulate that there is some opposition in Ottawa to the energy evolution plan that has been passed by Ottawa city council.  There is no need for you to file your material.

MR. LADANYI:  Well, it goes like this.  This is a technical conference and not a hearing, so I think you should -- your objection can be noted in the hearing.  However, the rules in a technical conference are not that clear.

So I can have an exhibit number, and then you can argue that this exhibit should be struck or nothing done with it.  You can do whatever you like with it, but since there is no Board panel here, there is nothing that can be done.  I can have a number.  That's all I am asking for.  A number.

MR. MILLAR:  Gentlemen, let me suggest this --


MR. SHEPHERD:  You're not asking questions about the content of the material.

MR. MILLAR:  Let me suggest this.  Folks, if I may interject here.  I am your host, but of course not a panel member.  We have had materials marked for identification or something like that.  I take it, Mr. Shepherd, your witnesses will not be answering any questions about that.  I am content to mark the exhibit, with the proviso that it is not accepted because Mr. Ladanyi has presented it.  He has filed it with the Board.  I am going to give it a number, but with the understanding that you are not answering questions about it.

MR. SHEPHERD:  I'm sorry.  Mr. Ladanyi has said he's not asking questions about the contents of the material, and I am objecting to it being filed, because it is not an aid in his questions.  There is no reason for him to file it.

What he wants to do is he wants to put it on the record, something that we don't know the author of, we don't know who wrote this, from a climate change denier organization.  He wants to put it on the record so he can refer to it in argument even though he's not using it in the technical conference.  That is not allowed.  It is against the rules.

If he wants to force it on the record, he needs to file a motion to do so.

MR. LADANYI:  Can I answer that?  First the climate change denier description is something that Jay Shepherd has come up with.  There is absolutely nothing on that site that says there is a climate change denial.  So this is his own opinion about the document.

He can absolutely -- in his argument, he can argue whatever he likes.  But I would just like a number, that is all.

MR. MILLAR:  Gentlemen, so at the end of the day, I can't prevent Mr. Ladanyi from arguing if he wants in his final submission.  I will mark this as an objected-to exhibit and we will move from there.  And if the witnesses won't answer questions about it, that's is obviously up to the witnesses and Mr. Shepherd.

But I am going to mark it as an objected-to exhibit, which does not even have --

MR. SHEPHERD:  I want to ask Mr. Ladanyi, was the former title of this website International Climate Science Coalition?  Are you aware of that?

MR. LADANYI:  Absolutely not.  This website was, as far as I know, is part of the Wind Concerns Ontario organization that has been fighting for the rights of people who are located close to wind turbines, who have been suffering from the noise of wind turbines and other disruptions for years, and they have -- this is a group that is fighting against that in Ottawa.

They're in the outskirts of Ottawa and they're concerned that the City of Ottawa is going to be building wind turbines close to their homes, and they're very, very concerned about it.  It has nothing to do with the other group at all.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Who are these people?

MR. LADANYI:  As I described them.  They're people who live in those communities.  I have described them to you before.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Do you have any names?  Because there is no names on their website, Mr. Ladanyi.  None, zero.

MR. LADANYI:  That's exactly right, there is no names on the website.  It is a large group.  You can go and search names.  I am not going to give you a list of names on the record.

MR. MILLAR:  Gentlemen, if I can stop you.  Mr. Mondrow?

MR. MONDROW:  Thank you, Mr. Millar.  Ian Mondrow, counsel for the Industrial Gas Users Association.

I just wanted to ask Mr. Ladanyi, because I am not clear, I thought, Mr. Ladanyi, you said that you were not intending to ask the witness questions about the document.  Are you intending to put questions to the witnesses about the document?

MR. LADANYI:  The only question I wanted to put to the witnesses -- and I explained this in my e-mail on Saturday evening -- is that they would agree with me that there is opposition to the plans of City of Ottawa that have been presented in this proceeding.

MR. MONDROW:  Okay, thank you.  The reason I asked that, Mr. Millar, is because it seems to me if Mr. Ladanyi wants to ask a question about the document, in that case it is legitimate to mark it.

If he wasn't going to refer to it at all, there is no point in marking it.  So that's why I asked the for the clarification.

MR. MILLAR:  I tend to agree with that.  Mr. Elson?

MR. ELSON:  I just -- let me wait and see if that resolves the matt4er, because maybe I don’t need to speak to this if no question it is not going to be answered.

If it is going to be entered, I know Mr. Ladanyi has said it doesn't have anything to do with the International Climate Science Coalition.

The first article that Mr. Ladanyi has -- is intending to submit reiterates a report from the International Climate Science Coalition, and I would then want to ask follow up questions to confirm that that is indeed a climate denying organization.

So this is potentially a bit of a rabbit hole we're going down here, and I would prefer if it not be marked.  Otherwise, we will be, I think, waylaid for a document which we don't need to have in this record at all because no questions are going to be asked about it.

MR. MILLAR:  Mr. Ladanyi, are you asking questions about the document?

MR. LADANYI:  I am not -- I am asking questions about the document as evidence there is opposition to what City of Ottawa is planning.

I am not going to go into the everything that is on the website.  I just printed what is on the website to show there is opposition.  Yes, it appears that on that website, is an article that is copied from the International Climate Science Coalition and I have -- I am not commenting on it.  I am not representing that group, and I have no idea who those people are.

I am just telling you -- I could have actually posted some other stuff.  For example, I understand there was an article in one of the local newspapers about the opposition.

I thought about that as well.  And I could have posted that and sent that in as evidence that there is opposition --


MR. MILLAR:  If the point you are trying to make is there is opposition, then you can ask that question.  I understand, Mr. Shepherd, the witnesses will agree to that, though I will leave that to them.

MR. SHEPHERD:  That's the question.

MR. MILLAR:  Do you need external documentation of opposition if the witnesses will speak to that?

MR. LADANYI:  I thought about that and I believe that I do, because otherwise it is just a bunch of words and I wanted to show evidence that there is actually organized opposition against what --

MR. MILLAR:  Again, if they will accept that, it sounds to me you would have better evidence from witnesses than from -- I don't want to say unattributed, but from a website you have no witness.  So it seems to me your evidence is stronger if you actually have the witnesses agree to that than documentation that I don't want to spend the whole day fighting about.

MR. LADANYI:  I would like a number.  May I just have a number, since I believe -- we're in the technical conference, and all parties can put whatever argument they like.

They can argue and in their submission to the Board that this should be entirely disregarded, they're welcome to do that.  I might argue that, for example, some of the stuff that Environmental Defence has put on -- is about to put on the record should also be disregarded.

So everybody is free to argue that, but you cannot deny me the ability to essentially have an exhibit and everybody can argue about it.  They're welcome to argue about it.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Sorry.  Look it.  The rule is you can't just put anything you want on the record any time you feel like it.  That is not how it works.  You have to have a legitimate reason to put it on the record.

If you want to ask the question, is there opposition even by this particular group, ask the question.  If there is a problem with the answer, then we will talk about whether you need to file something.

MR. LADANYI:  You are making up the rules as you go along.  Can you quote me the specific rule?

MR. SHEPHERD:  What is the specific rule that says you can file anything on the record any time you like?

MR. LADANYI:  We're in the technical conference; we are not in the hearing.  If we were in the hearing, that would be a different matter and then the Board would rule on it.  But we're not in a hearing.

MR. MILLAR:  Mr. Ladanyi, are you relying on these documents?  Again, I don't want to take over your questioning for you.  But if I heard you, the evidence you want on the record is there is organized opposition to these proposals.

MR. LADANYI:  Yes.

MR. MILLAR:  If that is the case --

MR. LADANYI:  I want to show that there is not only just the words which they're probably be spun, God knows how, by the witnesses and their counsel.  But also there is actually organized opposition to what Ottawa is proposing.

MR. MILLAR:  I understood they were prepared to attest to that.  Again --

MR. LADANYI:  It is not enough for me.  I would like a number.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Ask the question.

MR. MILLAR:  Let me go to Ian and Kent, and then I am just going to make a decision that I have no authority make, and go forward from there.

MR. MONDROW:  Thanks, Michael.  Ian Mondrow, counsel for IGUA. The reason I interject on this is I think there is a tether required for filing documents.

So my suggestion is that Tom proceed with his questions.  Ask about the document -- before it is marked.  We have gotten in the habit of just marking documents before asking questions; I think it is actually better the other way around.

To the extent the document is acknowledged, recognized, or commented on in some substantive way by the witnesses, then it should be marked.  To the extent they're unable to comment on it, it I doesn't add anything and it shouldn’t be marked.

But I think the question should proceed, the decision about whether to mark a document or not.  Generally, a document should be validated first and then marked as such, rather than the other way around.

So I suggest we proceed -- that you proceed, sorry, Mr. Millar, that way.  Thanks.

MR. MILLAR:  Listen, we have marked a lot of things in tech conferences, I have to say.  We mark newspaper articles, we mark all sort of things.  They don't become evidence by virtue of them being marked.  It is largely as an aid to tracking things, essentially.

Now sometimes obviously they are spoken to by witnesses and they become evidence of a sort, and sometimes they're already evidence.

This is what I intend to do.  Mr. Ladanyi, please ask your questions.  And then once you are done asking your questions about these, you can let me know if you still want it marked.  If you want it marked, I will mark it as a disputed exhibit.  And then we will go forward from there.

MR. LADANYI:  All right.

MR. MILLAR:  Please proceed with your questions.

MR. LADANYI:  Yes.  So I am not actually going to start with this document at all.  So can we go to -- can I have on the screen Energy Probe interrogatory responses, Energy Probe 1 -- that's right, and specifically to question C.  And there, see let's go to the question first.  Go up to the question.

And I asked:  What is the position of the sponsors on the use of natural gas by residents of the City of Ottawa.  Specifically, do the sponsors believe that Ottawa residents should be prohibited from using natural gas by some future date?

Can you go to the answer, please?  Scroll down.  And the answer was:
"The OEB does not have jurisdiction to prohibit the future use of natural gas by residents of the City of Ottawa, and therefore this interrogatory is out of scope for this proceeding."


So my question did not ask about OEB's jurisdiction.  So this appears to be missing my point.  Perhaps I should have made it clearer.  I am talking only about what the City of Ottawa wants, not what the OEB may or may not do in the future.  What does City of Ottawa really want?

MR. SHEPHERD:  I am going to object to the question.  What you are asking is what the position of the city is. This is factual evidence.  We're providing facts about a plan for the city.

This is not argument.  This is not cross-examination.  We will stipulate that the city does not have jurisdiction to prohibit the use of natural gas by its residents.

MR. LADANYI:  Thank you.  Can you please turn to Energy Probe 2.  Question B.  In question B I said:
"Please explain what is Sponsors' understanding of renewable natural gas, how and where will it be produced and delivered to customers.  And please explain if the existing system of distribution pipelines in the City of Ottawa owned by Enbridge Gas will be used."

And your response B, which, I am not going to read the whole thing, in the second-to-last line talks about:

"At such a location there is access to low-cost electricity."

So what is this location where you have access to low-cost electricity?

MR. SHEPHERD:  You can answer that, Mr. Fletcher.

MR. FLETCHER:  Thank you.  Mike Fletcher, City of Ottawa.  The location is the City's wastewater treatment plant, ROPEC.

MR. LADANYI:  Where is it located, please?

MR. FLETCHER:  Located in the east end of the city, off Stafford Road.  I don't know the exact --


MR. LADANYI:  So it is actually in --


MR. FLETCHER:  -- address off the top of my head.

MR. LADANYI:  It is not in Gatineau.  It is actually in Ottawa, is it?

MR. FLETCHER:  It is in Ottawa, yes.

MR. LADANYI:  Why would there be a low-cost electricity there?

MR. FLETCHER:  Because it is a class A electrical account.

MR. LADANYI:  So how is it producing electricity?

MR. FLETCHER:  Well, I mean, it buys electricity off the wholesale market at the hourly price.  So that price frequently goes quite low.  An example would be yesterday, when the province was relatively warm and there was a lot of generation still going on, and the price for most of the day yesterday, the wholesale price was zero dollars per megawatt hour.

MR. LADANYI:  Okay.  Thank you for that.

So please turn to Energy Probe 3.  Okay.  And question C:

"Will natural gas be used by Cliff Street heating and cooling plant after conversion from steam to hot water?"

And your answer at C was:

"We are unsure of the specific timing of the steam to hot water conversion for the federal district energy system.  However, assuming it will be a portion of the work."

And so on.  I won't go into it entirely, your answer, just to save time.

Now, my understanding is the Cliff Street plant is actually located behind the Supreme Court building, and there was an explosion there in 2009 that killed one person.  One of the six boilers blew up and the government -- and the plant is owned by Public Works Canada --


MR. SHEPHERD:  Sorry, Mr. Ladanyi, are you giving evidence?

MR. LADANYI:  I am actually setting up my question, please.

And it is owned by Public Works Canada.  Public Works Canada decided to change the plant to hot-water heating, not for efficiency reasons but for safety reasons, because they didn't want to have high-pressure steam any more.

So -- and I also -- I'm going to come to my question.  After conversion the plant will still use natural gas, burn natural gas, but they will heat the water instead of creating steam.

So is that your understanding?

MR. FLETCHER:  So what's your question exactly?  That the plant --


MR. LADANYI:  That the plant -- they will still continue to use natural gas after conversion, after it is rebuilt.  Actually, they're building a new plant with two large smoke stacks.

MR. FLETCHER:  So my belief is that -- that's right.  They will in the initial stage switch from producing steam to hot water, but I don't know -- they're doing several activities concurrently, and I don't know which one finishes first.  And one of the activities is eventually to use renewable natural gas, not fossil-sourced natural gas.

And I would -- I can't claim expertise on knowing the exact time line for that.

MR. LADANYI:  No.  And you are quite right, because they have -- as far as I know, they have not made a decision yet.  They're still studying this --


MR. SHEPHERD:  So, sorry, Mr. Ladanyi, you can't keep giving evidence.  You can ask questions about the interrogatories.  You cannot keep putting things on the record that you believe are true unless you want to be a witness and be available for questioning.

MR. LADANYI:  Well, can I finish my question, Mr. Shepherd, please?

MR. SHEPHERD:  That wasn't a question.  You were making statements --


MR. LADANYI:  Well, I am coming to it.  You are interrupting.  Mr. Millar, I have lost at least an extra ten minutes because of Mr. Shepherd's interruptions.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Ask appropriate questions; I won't interrupt.

MR. LADANYI:  15 minutes.  Okay.  Anyway, let's continue on.

So how will -- whatever gas is used, how will gas get to the Cliff Street plant?  Will it use pipe or will it deliver it by bottles?

MR. FLETCHER:  That is not a question for me.  That would be a question for Federal [audio dropout]


MR. LADANYI:  You mentioned the Cliff Street plant.  So therefore Cliff Street plant is on the record, and as we know from what Enbridge said, the government -- Public Works Canada has asked for gas service to continue at Cliff Street plant.  Natural gas service.  And that after, possibly later, if Enbridge supplies renewable natural gas, it will still be gas pipe to Cliff Street plant.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Let me just interrupt here.  Mr. Ladanyi, the answer to your question is in the answer to the interrogatory:

"This will presumably be supplied by the existing gas distribution network."

Do you have a further question on this interrogatory?

MR. LADANYI:  Thank you for providing the answer, Mr. Shepherd.

So please turn to Energy Probe number 8, question C.  And here I ask:

"Please confirm that the City of Ottawa is proceeding with its plan no matter what the cost to the City's taxpayers and energy users is.  And if the answer is yes, please describe how the City has informed its residents that it is proceeding with a 'cost is no object plan'.  If the answer is no, please provide the upper limit on the cost of the plan that would cause the City of Ottawa to abandon it."

And your answer is on the next page, page -- C, page 44:

"At no time has the City suggested that they will achieve the goals set out in the plan no matter what the cost.  The cost to achieve the goals and so on..."

I am not going to read all of this.  People can read it and they can use it in their argument.

And this is the point where I wanted to actually ask you, are you aware that there is public opposition to the plan and the public is concerned about the cost and the potential implications of the plan, including installation of wind turbines and installation of storage batteries possibly in neighbourhoods.  The plan mentions 122 storage batteries and 710 wind turbines and large areas of solar panels.

So are you aware there is opposition to this?

MR. SHEPHERD:  Go ahead, Mr. Fletcher.

MR. FLETCHER:  Yes.  So Mike Fletcher, City of Ottawa.  I have read newspaper articles expressing concern about the cost and feasibility of the energy evolution plan.  I haven't read any articles or seen any correspondence specifically about concerns over battery storage.

MR. LADANYI:  Okay.  So have you seen -- have you looked at the exhibit that I filed on Saturday?

MR. FLETCHER:  Well, I may have, but I am unclear whether that is a document we're supposed to discuss.  Sorry.  It's my first time as a witness.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Mr. Fletcher -- we can stipulate that Mr. Fletcher has seen the document you filed.

What is your question, Mr. Ladanyi?

MR. LADANYI:  My question is that there is substantial opposition.  Is he aware that there is substantial opposition after seeing that document, and I would like a document number, please.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Mr. Fletcher, you can answer what you know about opposition by Wind Concerns Ottawa.

MR. FLETCHER:  Mr. Ladanyi, we have had about three different plans go before a committee in council that to some degree refer to Energy Evolution.

Opposition -- the question I have, then, for you is opposition to what exactly?

MR. LADANYI:  Well, as can be seen from the document which I would like the number to, please, Mr. Millar.

MR. SHEPHERD:  No.  Sorry.  Ask your questions.

MR. LADANYI:  He asked me a question so actually I am supposed to not answer it?  Okay, I won't answer it, but I can ask as a counter-question, then.

Public is opposed to the wind turbines, they're opposed to the location of -- the potential location of the storage batteries, and the potential location of the solar ground base solar, as can be seen from the document.

That is a legitimate group.  It's been in operation for quite a while and it is very concerned about what is going on in Ottawa.

And as I understand from talking to them -- which I did -- is that they're concerned about it and I have decided it would be a good point for the OEB to be aware there is opposition to it.

So that is why the document is -- so you are aware the group exists, are you?

MR. FLETCHER:  Yes, absolutely.

MR. LADANYI:  And you are aware that they're opposed to wind turbines being located in the City of Ottawa?

MR. SHEPHERD:  Let me interrupt again.  Mr. Fletcher, describe, please, how -- the extent to which you are aware that Wind Concerns Ottawa is opposed to what you are doing.

MR. FLETCHER:  So the extent I am aware, first of all, if we're talking about opposition to Energy Evolution, at the time Energy Evolution went before committee in council, I'm not aware of any correspondence from them.

So when Energy Evolution was voted on by Ottawa city council and passed unanimously, I have not personally heard of any opposition from them.

That came later, I believe, and your documents seem to always refer to 2021, which was after Energy Evolution was passed.

I am only aware of -- and I am not sure if you're referring to concern or opposition, because I think the two words are quite a bit different.  But I am aware of concern about wind turbines.  I am not aware of anything in the way of concern or opposition to ground managed solar or storage batteries, you know, anything previous to seeing your document.

MR. LADANYI:  I will then leave the document, but I still need a reference to the document, please.  Can I have a number and as I said, Mr. Shepherd can argue whatever way he wants.

MR. MILLAR:  Gentlemen, I am going to mark it as a disputed --


MR. ELSON:  Sorry, Mr. Millar, you were going to give me an opportunity to speak to this earlier, and you didn't manage to get to me.

I would like to speak to it because this is very, very different from material that's been put on the record before in the past.

There was references to news articles or reports that are sometimes serving the basis of questions.  This is not a news article.  This is not a report.  What it cites in the first article are conclusions reached by the International Climate Science Coalition.  They have material on the website which says things like this:
"Since science and observation have failed to substantiate human-caused climate hypothesis, it is premature to damage natural economies with carbon taxes, emissions trading, or other schemes to control greenhouse gas emissions."


This is a climate denying organization, and I don't think it is appropriate for the OEB to be countenancing this kind of information by having it as a --


MR. MILLAR:  Mr. Elson, the OEB isn't countenancing anything here.  Mr. Ladanyi has asked to have something marked.  There is universal opposition to this.  I am marking it as a disputed exhibit so we can keep this moving.

MR. ELSON:  Mr. Millar, you can mark it for identification which, to me at least, is different than having it be an exhibit in this proceeding.

MR. MILLAR:  Thank you for that, and I think that is a fair-enough comment.  I don't care how we phrase it.  I wanted to recognize it was disputed, which is why I suggested disputed.  I do know sometimes things are marked for identification purposes, which I guess is a flavour of the same thing.

I am going to mark it as something, so we can keep this moving.  It will be marked for identification as K T2.1 (disputed).


EXHIBIT NO. KT2.1 (disputed):  COPY OF WEB PAGE PROVIDED BY MR. LADANYI


MR. MILLAR:  Let's keep moving.

MR. LADANYI:  Thank you, Mr. Millar.  Please turn to Energy Probe 11, question D.  There I asked the question:
"Please explain why there is no mention of the city's plan in Hydro Ottawa's 2021-2025 load forecast, or in its long-term electric energy and demand forecast, or in its Distribution System Plan for 2021-2025 presented by Hydro Ottawa to the OEB in the EB-2019-0261 proceeding for approval of its 2021-2025 rates."


And your answer is on page 49.  In the answer you say there were a number of interrogatories in the proceeding, and all I am going to ask you is for an undertaking to file Hydro Ottawa's responses to these undertakings on the record.

MR. SHEPHERD:  We will give that undertaking.

MR MILLAR:  That will be JT2.3.
UNDERTAKING NO. JT2.3:  TO RESPOND TO INTERROGATORY ENERGY PROBE 11D


MR. LADANYI:  Now if  we can go to question I on the same interrogatory, I asked, where in the City of Ottawa would the large scale wind turbines be located.

Your response (i) which is on page 50:
"The city's plan does not propose to install 710 large scale wind turbines in the City of Ottawa.  Any Ottawa wind turbines of any size that were built would be located in appropriately zoned areas of community respecting required setbacks."


Could you describe to me this -- what does this second sentence mean.

MR. FLETCHER:  Mike Fletcher, City of Ottawa.  So a land use planner was involved in looking at this issue and considered guidance on setbacks and a setback is -- as I recall it being described, a setback is the distance from mostly from buildings where people are living or working.

And there are zoning considerations as to where -- where turbines could be located.  So prime agricultural land would not be a non-associated use for a wind turbine.

MR. LADANYI:  Sorry, what is non-associated use?  What does that mean?

MR. FLETCHER:  So the city got guidance on this, and it is basically that renewable energy could be located on a farm in a prime agricultural area if it is just providing energy to the farm, whereas large scale wind turbines would be there to export energy.

So in prime agricultural land, export turbines would not be allowed.

MR. LADANYI:  Would the city consider opposition from people in the community where the turbines are --


MR. SHEPHERD:  That is not a question following up on this interrogatory.

MR. LADANYI:  We are discussing plans where the turbines could be located.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Sorry, you are cross-examining, Mr. Ladanyi.

MR. LADANYI:  I am just asking follow-up questions on that.

MR. SHEPHERD:  We won't answer these questions.

MR. LADANYI:  I am trying to understand what will be considered.  It is appropriate uses -- okay.  So if the farm is not using power from the wind turbine, then the turbine cannot be located there.

I asked couldn't it be located in a farm that is not in that category, but is -- in fact there is opposition from the farmer?

MR. SHEPHERD:  We are objecting to the question; we will not answer it.  I am instructing the witness not to answer it.

MR. LADANYI:  I just think it is very disappointing this is a technical conference and we are trying to provide the best information.

Mr. Shepherd, you are doing everything to actually suppress information, which is kind of like voter suppressant -- suppressing in the States.  Possibly this is information suppressing in an OEB proceeding.  I am actually very disappointed by what has been going on here, and I think that should be noted.  Anyway, those are all my
questions --


MR. SHEPHERD:  You should stop cross-examining and I will stop objecting.

MR. LADANYI:  I think you have a lot of times in the past, Mr. Shepherd, you have cross-examined witnesses in a technical conference.  So we should be very much -- you are -- essentially set up a very high standard for yourself.

Anyway, these are all my questions.  I will let other parties ask questions, but I should note if Mr. Elson has an exhibit he is going to be filing I may object to that, so we will go on -- and I will object to everything, if it's going to be a morning of objections.

Anyway, these are all my questions.  Thank you, panel.

MR. MILLAR:  Okay, thank you, Mr. Ladanyi.  I believe up next we have you, Mr. Elson.
Examination by Mr. Elson:

MR. ELSON:  Yes.  Thank you.  Could I ask who is sharing the screen right now, and if they could pull down their document so I can put up our compendium.

Thank you, panel.  My name is Kent Elson, and I represent Environmental Defence, and I am going to be asking you a few questions today.  I should be -- was at least planning to be below my time.

And I would like to start by asking you a question about a document in Environmental Defence compendium, volume 1, and I will turn to page 3.

This document is analysis produced by the International Energy Agency, the IEA, and particularly it is analysis on decarbonization of heating.

I will just have one question relating to the consistency of what is described in this document with Energy Evolution.  I am now turning to page 4 of the Environmental Defence compendium, which is page 2 of this document from the International Energy Agency.

I am going to read to you the highlighted portion.  It says:
"The dominance of fossil fuel-based heaters and water heaters is weakening, with their market share recently having fallen to less than 50 percent.  Despite this positive development, however, new fossil fuel boilers and furnaces still jeopardize the achievement of net zero emissions, as they are locking in additional CO2 emissions that will be released during future operations.  Boilers manufacturers claim a product lifetime of 15, 20 years.  The buildup of long-lived, hard-to-retrofit heating equipment must therefore cease as soon as possible, with fossil fuel-based heating --


MR. LADANYI:  Mr. -- before you go too far, excuse me --


MR. ELSON:  No, Mr. Ladanyi, I would like to ask my question.

MR. LADANYI:  No.  I would like to object to this document right off in the beginning before you go too far. This document is exactly the same as my document.  You got it from a website.  You have not presented any witnesses whatsoever to speak to this document, and now you are reading from it.  At least I didn't read from my document.

So first, this document, I object to it being marked as an exhibit on the same grounds that Mr. Shepherd objected -- and you objected to my document being marked as an exhibit.

So if you want to call this an exhibit, this is objected to.

MR. ELSON:  Mr. Ladanyi, there are three very important differences between my document and the document that you were going to put on the record.  So please let me finish.

MR. LADANYI:  You can put those documents -- those arguments in the argument --


MR. ELSON:  Excuse me, Mr. Ladanyi.  I let you speak, even though you interrupted my question, and now I would like you to let me speak, please.

The first important difference is that your document was reciting conclusions from a climate-denying organization, and having that information on the OEB's website can be used to spread further disinformation and provide credibility to a climate-denying organization.  In contrast, this is a document produced by the International Energy Agency.

Secondly, the document that you provided had no author and was -- or could be described as a random web page.  This, again, is a reputable international organization, the International Energy Agency.

The third difference is that I have expressly set out in the beginning what I am going to be asking these witnesses, which is to describe the consistency between what the International Energy Agency has set out here in terms of its analysis for decarbonization of heating and Energy Evolution.

So there is a specific reason for me to be asking this question.  I am going to ask my question, after which point I will be asked -- I will ask that this be marked as an exhibit.

MR. MILLAR:  Just to head things off, I will -- Mr. Elson, you may ask your questions, just as Mr. Ladanyi did.  When you get to marking it as an exhibit we will see where folks are.  Please continue with your questions for now.

MR. ELSON:  Okay.  I guess I should start my question again.

Okay.  Panel, again, this is a document from the International Energy Agency, and I am going to ask you a question about the consistency between the conclusion in this report and Energy Evolution.

It says here that:

"The dominance of fossil fuel-based heaters and water heaters is weakening, with their market share recently having fallen to less than 50 percent.  Despite this positive development, however, new fossil fuel boilers and furnaces still jeopardize the achievement of net zero emission goals, as they are locking in additional CO2 emissions that will be released during further operations."

Further down:

"The buildup of long-lived, hard-to-retrofit heating equipment must therefore cease as soon as possible, with fossil fuel-based heating solutions completely phased out by 2025 to achieve alignment with the Net Zero Emissions by 2050 Scenario."

My question is whether Ottawa's Energy Evolution plan is consistent with the IEA's conclusions that fossil fuel-based heating solutions need to be completely phased out to achieve net alignment with net zero emissions by 2050.

MR. FLETCHER:  Mike Fletcher, City of Ottawa.  Broadly speaking, the answer to that is yes.  And --


MR. LADANYI:  Mr. Millar, can we now speak to this document?  It appears that Mr. Elson is delivering evidence himself by reading into the record large sections of a document that we have not even marked yet.  So can we discuss the marking of this document now, please?

MR. MILLAR:  He has read to them from a document and asked their views on that document.  That is them giving evidence, not him, I think.  But Mr. Elson, do you wish to mark this?

MR. ELSON:  Yes, please.

MR. MILLAR:  And if you do, I take it it is disputed by Mr. Ladanyi, and we will mark it on that basis, and we will move forward.

MR. LADANYI:  Yes, it is disputed.

MR. MILLAR:  Okay.  KT2.1.  And I'm sorry, Mr. Elson, is this your entire -- this is your -- part of your compendium, is it not?

MR. ELSON:  Correct.  Compendium, volume 1, and it is dated from March 2nd.

MR. MILLAR:  Okay.  So I am marking that entire thing, your entire compendium, disputed.  Let's continue.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Did you say KT2.1, Mr. Millar?

MR. MILLAR:  2.2.
EXHIBIT NO. KT2.2 (disputed):  ED COMPENDIUM, VOLUME 1.

MR. ELSON:  Sorry, Mr. Millar, but that marking only relates to volume 1, correct?

MR. MILLAR:  Yes, I'm sorry.  Are there multiple -- there is multiple volumes, Mr. Elson?

MR. ELSON:  There is a volume 2.  I don't actually need to refer to it, but I am fine if it gets marked as --


MR. MILLAR:  Let's just do one at a time for now.  So K2.2 is the ED volume 1 compendium.

MR. ELSON:  Sounds good to me.  Yes.  Volume 2 was questions that I was unable to ask Enbridge's witness panel because of the issue that was discussed on Friday, and I will not be referring to volume 2 for these witnesses.

So the IEA is calling for an end to new fossil-fuel heating equipment by 2025, whereas I think Energy Evolution doesn't have a specific end date for new fossil fuel-based equipment.  Is that right, Mr. Fletcher?

MR. FLETCHER:  Mike Fletcher, City of Ottawa.  So to clarify, I would say we make a distinction between fossil fuel based equipment and combustion based equipment.  We're not necessarily precluding combustion-based equipment entirely, but to a very large measure, it will be reduced substantially.

So I think that would be a slight difference between   the Energy Evolution plan and what the IEA is discussing here.

MR. ELSON:  Would you agree that in a sense, Energy Evolution is more conservative than what the IEA is discussing, because the IEA is talking about a specific end date of 2025?

MR. FLETCHER:  So I would say that the IEA point here, especially completely phased out by 2025, is definitely more ambitious than Energy Evolution.

MR. ELSON:  Thank you.  I would like to ask you some questions, very high-level, about thermal storage.  And by way of setting the discussion here on page 41 of our compendium are our materials from Steffes and this is their thermal storage unit.  Are you able to confirm --


MR. SHEPHERD:  Let me just stop you, Mr. Elson.

MR. ELSON:  Yes.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Mr. Fletcher, are you familiar with thermal storage systems?

MR. FLETCHER:  I have some familiarity with them, yes.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Mr. Dicaire, are you familiar with thermal storage systems?

MR. DICAIRE:  I am.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay.  Sorry.  Go on, Mr. Elson.  I just want to make sure you are asking them questions about something they are familiar with.

MR. ELSON:  Thank you.  And in this document here, it describes -- why don't I set a level to satisfy your concerns, Mr. Shepherd -- describes thermal storage as follows, and it says:
"While heat pumps are known for providing efficient, low cost heating and cooling, they require supplemental heat during colder temperatures.  When demand for heat is greater than a heat pump's capacity, the comfort plus forced air furnace adds the precise amount of its stored off-peak heat as needed to ensure constant comfort, while still allowing full optimization of the heat pump's efficiency."


Is that your understanding of the technology, and how it would work with a heat pump?

MR. FLETCHER:  That is certainly one way it could work, yes, absolutely.

MR. ELSON:  And if I understand it correctly, Energy Evolution currently doesn't include a specific plan or specific targets for electric thermal storage, is that right?

MR. FLETCHER:  That's correct.

MR. ELSON:  And in terms of what's under your jurisdiction, Mr. Dicaire, is that correct as well?  Or are there specific plans to use this technology?

MR. DICAIRE:  I wouldn't say there is anything specific, but I mean thermal storage in general -- which can be anything from latent to sensible to chemical -- is part of the tool kit that helps us achieve the goals.

MR. ELSON:  That is very helpful, thank you.  And on page 43, there is reference to Nova Scotia Hydro and it again describes electric thermal storage.

Are you familiar with Nova Scotia Hydro and Hydro-Québec now providing incentives for thermal storage?

MR. FLETCHER: Mike Fletcher, City of Ottawa.  No, I am not.  I have been aware it is something done in Quebec, you know.  We can walk to Quebec from city hall, so we often find out what is going on there.  I haven't been aware of incentives, though.

MR. ELSON:  Would it be fair to say that Ottawa will consider thermal storage in future updates of the Energy Evolution plan?  Is that fair to say?

MR. FLETCHER:  Yes.

MR. ELSON:  Thank you.  Now, the next document I would like to walk you through is our compendium for your panel, which is actually just a single document, which are some calculations here.

MR. MONDROW:  Sorry to interrupt.  Mr. Elson, if I could?


MR. ELSON:  Yes.

MR. MONDROW:  It is Ian Mondrow, counsel for IGUA.  You referred to page 43 of your compendium, but I don't recall you asking any questions about it.

MR. ELSON:  The question I asked was whether the witnesses are familiar with what is happening in Nova Scotia and in Quebec, and the answer was no.

MR. MONDROW:  Thank you.

MR. FLETCHER:  Mike Fletcher, City of Ottawa.  Perhaps just a point of order on that.  I am familiar that energy storage -- thermal storage, excuse me, is taking place in Quebec.  I was not familiar that there's subsidy programs for it.  That was news to me.  Thank you.

MR. ELSON:  Thank you, Mr. Fletcher.  That is a more accurate recap of what you said, which I described inaccurately, I acknowledge.

Turning now to this document, this document as indicated on the top was prepared by Environmental Defence for technical conference questions to the Sponsors' witnesses.

I would like to start by walking you through some of the assumptions in this document, to determine whether they are consistent with Energy Evolution.

This document arises from a discussion that you likely heard on Friday relating to the evidence of Enbridge, the responding evidence regarding "the feasibility of electrification".  And it goes through some of the steps that we discussed with Enbridge, in terms of converting an energy input from gas to an energy input from electricity.

So I would like to just ask some questions about the assumptions here.  So one of the --


MR. SHEPHERD:  I am just going to interrupt.  I want to be very clear, Mr. Elson.  My witnesses are not being provided as expert witnesses.  Even though they have some expertise in the field, they are not able to provide expert opinions and you can't ask them about -- to give any expert opinions.

MR. ELSON:  Absolutely, Mr. Shepherd.  I will avoid that.  And if I overstep the line, please interrupt me.

For now I am asking whether any of these inputs are consistent or inconsistent with Energy Evolution.

So my understanding is that Energy Evolution is planning building stock efficiency gains in the range of sixty to seventy percent.  Is that fair to say?

MR. FLETCHER:  Mike Fletcher, Ottawa.  That's correct, and that would be -- excuse me, that would be for existing buildings.

MR. ELSON:  For existing buildings.  And for new buildings, they should be passive?

MR. FLETCHER:  Meaning passive house standard?  By 2030, so what's in the Energy Evolution model is passive house construction or equivalent standard for thermal energy demand by 2030.

MR. ELSON:  Okay.  And I understand that Energy Evolution assumes approximately 25 percent of heating would be by way of ground source heat pumps, is that fair to say?  About a quarter?

MR. FLETCHER:  Correct.

MR. ELSON:  And in addition, Energy Evolution assumes some district heating.

MR. FLETCHER:  It does, yes.

MR. ELSON:  And that would also be ground source heat pumps?

MR. FLETCHER:  No, it wouldn't.  It would be -- at the time, it was actually a little bit less aggressive than that.

It discussed the federal system as it was understood at the time the model was created.  So that was the switch from the federal district energy system being steam to it being hot water, which is more efficient.  And I believe that might be all that was in the model at the time.

I would want to check that.  Since then, the plans for the district energy system have become more aggressive, in terms of decarbonization.

MR. ELSON:  Got it.  Okay.  And aside from the 25 percent that is slated to be ground source heat pumps, the other 75 percent, Energy Evolution doesn't expressly speak to the peak efficiency of the remainder of the heating.  Is that correct?  Or is there something specific in there?

MR. FLETCHER:  It doesn't speak to it directly, no.

MR. ELSON:  Okay.  So for ground source heat pumps, is it fair to say you would have about a 500 percent efficiency in Energy Evolution?

MR. FLETCHER:  I would want to just check the model and see what's in there for numbers and perhaps check with the consultant, but that would be a plausible number, I would say, yes.

MR. ELSON:  You know what?  I will ask you for an undertaking to take these calculations away, but I won't do that yet.  I will wait until we walk through them together.

Scenario 1 here is .255 gigawatts, so 255 megawatts.  And actually, that is not what I am going to ask you about.  The plans --


MR. FLETCHER:  Maybe I will just interrupt, Mr. Elson.  I notice Mr. Mondrow has his hand up.

MR. ELSON:  Oh, okay.

MR. MONDROW:  Sorry, if I do, that is an old hand.  Mr. Mondrow speaking.  Thanks, Mr. Fletcher.  I appreciate it.  I will get it down while you are answering Mr. Elson's questions, thanks.

MR. FLETCHER:  Okay.

MR. ELSON:  So in the second table here there is a comparison, 100 percent electric heating versus new resources.  And scenario 1 and scenario 2 go through the kind of calculations that I was discussing with Enbridge on Friday.

And then the next two lines are Ottawa's planned storage capacity.  And that's 600 megawatts.  Is that fair to say?

MR. FLETCHER:  Electrical storage by 2050; that's correct.

MR. ELSON:  I believe the exact number is 612; is that correct?

MR. FLETCHER:  Yes, that's correct.

MR. ELSON:  And the 612 megawatts of storage, is that earmarked for specific uses?  Or is that -- how did that come about in Energy Evolution?

MR. FLETCHER:  So in the model that is earmarked -- excuse me.  I've got stuff falling off the wall -- in the model that is earmarked to make sure that renewable resources -- renewable generation can be stored in periods where it is not required on the local electricity system.

MR. ELSON:  So it's not, I guess you could say necessarily occupied for a specific peak purpose, other than the peak electricity requirements.  Is that fair to say?

MR. FLETCHER:  In the model; that's correct.

MR. ELSON:  Yes.

MR. FLETCHER:  However, you know, I couldn't imagine that much storage of whatever type being installed and not being used in something like a demand response or a capacity program that the IESO runs.

MR. ELSON:  Got it.  And the next line is 4.3 gigawatts of other planned renewable capacity.  And is that roughly the accurate figure?

MR. FLETCHER:  That's correct.

MR. ELSON:  And I understand that that renewable capacity includes some wind and some solar?

MR. FLETCHER:  Well, it is predominantly those two, actually.

MR. ELSON:  Yes.

MR. FLETCHER:  Yes.

MR. ELSON:  And that renewable capacity would allow Ottawa to have zero carbon electricity; is that right?

MR. FLETCHER:  So all the planned renewable electricity generation, as well as the storage, would work together to displace the carbon content of the scope -- or the scope 2 emissions related to electricity from the bulk transmission grid.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Can I just -- I am not sure that that question was understood correctly, Mr. Elson.  Mr. Fletcher, did I understand you there to be -- and I want to be careful not to put words in your mouth -- that this renewable capacity is intended to displace the carbon in the bulk system?

MR. FLETCHER:  Mike Fletcher.  Yes, that's correct.

MR. SHEPHERD:  And so if the bulk system is decarbonized, how does that change what you are doing?

MR. FLETCHER:  I would say it is fair to say if the bulk system is decarbonized, then the impetus or the absolute requirement that all these resources be installed to allow the city to be net zero ceases to exist.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Thank you.  Sorry to interrupt, but I just thought it was not clear, Mr. Elson, and I wanted to make sure it was clear.

MR. ELSON:  Thank you, Mr. Shepherd and Mr. Fletcher.  In other words, you don't quote-unquote need this 4.3 gigawatts for decarbonization of the grid if the grid is decarbonized by the IESO and you can use it for other purposes?

MR. FLETCHER:  That's correct.  I think the thing to understand is at the time that Energy Evolution was put together we used the current policy and, you know, the current attributes of the electricity system as they existed to build the model.  We couldn't project how public policy would change in the future.

MR. ELSON:  Thank you.  And could you undertake to take this spreadsheet away and let me know if there are any calculation errors?  And to be clear, I am not asking you to do any modelling or render an expert opinion, but could you take that away?

MR. SHEPHERD:  Let me just be clear on what the undertaking is, Mr. Elson.

If I understand your calculation here, you start at the top with the 1.47 gigawatts that Enbridge says will be needed to displace natural gas, and you then reach a conclusion that based on the information in these calculations the actual electricity demand required -- or actual demand of the system is between 255 and 370 megawatts.

And you are asking the witnesses, then, to look at these calculations, agree with those conclusions as they relate to Energy Evolution, and also your conclusion that the storage solution achieves that peak requirement.  Is that what you are asking?

MR. ELSON:  No.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay.

MR. ELSON:  This document isn't coming to conclusions, nor can I ask your witnesses to come to conclusions.

This document runs through two scenarios where you reduce the amount of energy by way of energy efficiency and so on and so forth.  Those steps were discussed on Friday with Enbridge and is illustrative of those scenarios and is not something where I am predicting or asking your witnesses to predict exactly what the electrical requirements will be in 2050, because that's a fool's errand, but it is just some simple calculations looking at two scenarios.

And I did file the underlying spreadsheet so that your witnesses can look at it and say, oh, here's an obvious mistake, or now that I look at it this assumption is inconsistent with Energy Evolution.

So I think all your witnesses can say is, I have identified an error or there is an inconsistency with Energy Evolution somewhere.

MR. SHEPHERD:  But the ultimate question -- the undertaking you are asking is, are there any errors and are these electricity demand scenarios consistent with Energy Evolution?

MR. ELSON:  That sounds good, yes.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Thank you.  We will give that undertaking.

MR. MILLAR:  That is JT2.4.
UNDERTAKING NO. JT2.4(A):  TO ADVISE IF THERE ARE THERE ANY ERRORS IN THE SPREADSHEET AND IF THESE ELECTRICITY DEMAND SCENARIOS ARE CONSISTENT WITH ENERGY EVOLUTION.

MR. MILLAR:  Mr. Elson, we were looking to take a break around now.  Is there a convenient spot for you?  Or are you getting close to the end?

MR. ELSON:  I am close to the end, or we could take a break, but while we're on the topic I should mark this as an exhibit.

MR. MILLAR:  Oh, it hadn't been marked yet?  I'm sorry.  So that is KT2.3.
EXHIBIT NO. KT2.3:  SPREADSHEET FROM MR. ELSON.


MR. ELSON:  I don't expect to be more than another five minutes.  Do you prefer to stop now or after the break?

MR. MILLAR:  Yes.  If you can undertake five minutes then let's get you done.

MR. MONDROW:  Under five minutes.

MR. MILLAR:  Okay, off you go.

MR. ELSON:  Last question arising from Mr. Ladanyi's questions.  There was a document marked for identification and some discussion about the International Climate Science Coalition.

Could you had undertake to make best efforts to review materials produced by the International Climate Science Coalition and indicate whether those materials deny that global warming is caused by humans?

MR. SHEPHERD:  No, we are not prepared to give that undertaking.  Sorry.  That is out of scope for these witnesses.

MR. ELSON:  I don't disagree, Mr. Shepherd, that those materials are out of scope.  And my concern is that those materials are filed on the record without the appropriate context about the positions of the organization's views that global warming is not caused by humans.

And I heard Mr. Ladanyi mention that the evidence was being filed to show that there is opposition, and I agree that your witnesses are in a position to describe whether opposition exists or not.  But those materials cannot be used as evidence to show that there is opposition, for two reasons.

One is the evidentiary issues that we were discussing, and two is because those are conclusions from a non-credible organization.

It is one thing to say there's someone who is opposing this plan, and it is another thing to say that there is opposition that is being generated from an organization that does not believe that climate change is caused by humans.

So my request -- and I will finish it, and you can reject it -- is that your witnesses spend some time to review those materials, to confirm that the organization denies global warming is caused by humans.  And I will leave it there, Mr. Shepherd.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay.  So the undertaking I think you are asking is for these witnesses, who work for the City of Ottawa and a subsidiary of the City of Ottawa, to take a look at information and decide that these people who are residents of the City of Ottawa and who have appeared before Ottawa city council are crazy.

And we are not going to take that undertaking.  Sorry.

MR. ELSON:  That's fair.  And I will take that.  Just to be clear, I wasn't asking you to confirm that the people who have attended for depositions are crazy, and that was specifically relating to the International Climate Science Coalition as opposed to people who have necessarily appeared, which I just want to be clear.

I will take that refusal as it is, and I respect your decision for it, and those are my questions.  Thank you very much, panel.

MR. MILLAR:  Okay, thank you very much, Mr. Elson.  We will take our break now.  I think we are -- what are we at?  We are down for ten minutes.  Let's come back at 11:55, at which time I think Mr. Sidlofsky will be joining you.  So I'll take my leave, but thank you everyone for your help this morning.  We are now on our break.

MR. BROPHY:  Mr. Millar, I assume you mean 10:55 not 11:55?

MR. MILLAR:  That's correct.  Thank you very much.
--- Recess taken at 10:43 a.m.
--- On resuming at 10:56 a.m.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Good morning, everybody.  Good to be here.  I see that we're on to Enbridge, questions for the sponsor's panel.  It is now 10:55, so if you would like to get started, that would be great.

MR. KEIZER:  Are we on the record, Jamie?

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  We are.
Examination by Mr. Keizer:

MR. KEIZER:  Okay.  Good morning, panel.  My name is Charles Keizer.  I am legal counsel appearing on behalf of Enbridge, and sadly, I don't have a magazine article or a website or whatever else to put to you.  I am going to actually do it the more traditional way and kind of stick with the confines of the interrogatories that were asked, believe it or not.

So let's do it that way.  I will go through the interrogatories and, you know, to the extent you need to turn up what you need to turn up, we will do that and just work our way through them.

I have got a half hour.  Hopefully I might finish earlier.  I will give it my best shot.

So can I start first with OEB Staff interrogatory 1.  If I can have that brought up.  Thank you.  Scroll down to the table.

So we asked you in the question to provide the -- you know, based on the greenhouse gas inventories that were in place, and this related for the period 2012 to 2020, and we asked you to provide the annual corporate natural gas use for each of the years 2012 to 2020.

In the response you provided GHG emissions, but not gas usage.  And my question to you is, is the gas usage available?

MR. FLETCHER:  Sorry, Mike Fletcher, City of Ottawa.  Yes.  Well, I would have to do a bit of digging, but I could undertake to provide that.

MR. KEIZER:  So if you could undertake, then, to complete the table in A based upon the natural gas usage on a corporate basis, that would be appreciated.

MR. FLETCHER:  Okay.  And excuse me, Mr. Keizer, that is city-wide?

MR. KEIZER:  Well, we asked you in two ways.  We asked you first on a corporate natural gas use, which I am assuming relates to the City of Ottawa as a corporate entity, municipal entity.  And then also provide the annual community natural gas for that period of time as well, usage.

MR. FLETCHER:  Okay.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Is that what these answers are, Mr. Fletcher?

MR. FLETCHER:  These are greenhouse gas emission answers, and I explained that that was not available in the time to get the response in -- excuse me.  It was not available in the time to get the response in to provide the actual gas numbers.  We had the emission numbers at our fingertips.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So the thing I am asking to clarify is, is corporate the City of Ottawa?  That is, the actual municipality?  And is community -- Mr. Keizer, I think community, you meant the whole of all uses in the City of Ottawa?

MR. KEIZER:  Well, I am basing it on what was in the pre-filed evidence, which was, as indicated in the preamble, that the gas emissions decreased 23 percent while community gas emissions decreased 15 percent.

So the question is, what is the underlying gas usage associated with that, and what we want to see is what the gas usage is.  And to the extent that you have it available, provide it.  My understanding is the witness can provide the corporate -- for the City of Ottawa -- gas usage over this period, and if he can then try to see if they have a community number, if they do not, then, you know, indicate that they do not.

MR. SHEPHERD:  We will give that undertaking, but it will be on a best-efforts basis.

MR. KEIZER:  Thank you.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  We will make that JT2.4.
UNDERTAKING NO. JT2.4(B):  TO MAKE BEST EFFORTS TO PROVIDE NATURAL GAS USAGE FOR THE CITY OF OTTAWA; IF NOT, TO INDICATE WHY NOT

MR. KEIZER:  Can I go to Staff 3, please.  And in this interrogatory we made -- Enbridge made reference to figure 10 of the Energy Evolution at page 116 of your evidence. If you need to, we can bring that up.  And that demonstrated projected emissions by fuel source for 100 percent scenario, and that was from 2016 to 2050.

And on that chart -- and maybe -- would it be helpful if we bring it up for you?  Or are you...

MR. SHEPHERD:  The chart is not on the screen, Mr. Keizer.

MR. KEIZER:  Well, then can we bring it up?  It is actually, I believe, on page 116 of the pre-filed evidence.  Go down one more, please, figure 10, I believe it is.  I think the figure numbers are at the bottom, sorry.  That's figure 9.  Sorry, there is figure 10 on there.  I am pretty sure of it.  So -- on page 116.  There you go.  Perfect.  Thank you.

So what this chart showed was these are the emissions that actually related to natural gas, which is a particular focus, obviously, over the period from '16 to 2050, and what we had asked in the interrogatory is that you convert that data to show the projected gas usage for the year that -- out to 2050 that aligned with those emission levels.

MR. FLETCHER:  Mike Fletcher, City of Ottawa.  So that would require me getting some time from our consultant SSG to give the input data for the model.  So if it is not absolutely necessary, I would be inclined to request that we not undertake this.

MR. KEIZER:  Sorry, why would you not undertake it?  It is your evidence.  You are relying on it, and --


MR. FLETCHER:  Well, true, Mr. Keizer, it is our evidence.  The evidence is the emissions, not the gas, and to get the gas number behind that it probably would be right for me to employ the -- our consultant to do it.  Meaning pay him, which I am not -- you know, strictly speaking I don't have budget for.

MR. KEIZER:  Sorry.  So effectively you have a report.  The report has the information.  You acknowledge, I am assuming, that natural gas emissions are directly related to the usage of that natural gas.  Correct?

MR. FLETCHER:  That's true, yes.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Hang on.  You are cross-examining now, Mr. Keizer.  The witness has said clearly that he can get the information, but it costs money, and he doesn't have the budget for it.

MR. KEIZER:  So in actual fact then, is it fair to say that you have no evidence then in this proceeding that actually would show what the natural gas usage would be over the period from 2016 to 2050?

MR. FLETCHER:  Well, I think that is kind of an extreme way to kind of frame it.  There is gas use behind the emissions.  That's what's implied --


MR. KEIZER:  That's my -- that is what I am trying to understand, Mr. Fletcher.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Sorry, Mr. Fletcher.  Let me stop you.

Mr. Keizer, the witness's evidence is that no fossil-based natural gas will be used after a particular date.  So you want the natural gas usage?  The natural gas usage is zero.

MR. KEIZER:  Not between 2016 and 20 whatever on this draft.  I want to understand what is the natural gas usage that is set out underlying the emissions in their report which your witness is relying on.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Well, we will -- sorry, Mr. Fletcher.

MR. FLETCHER:  That's fine.

MR. SHEPHERD:  We will undertake to use our best efforts to estimate the amount of natural gas that is implied by these CO2 emissions.

MR. KEIZER:  Sorry, you were going to estimate?  But how are you going to estimate it?  These emissions, which you are relying on and this trend is relying on, has been created by somebody else.  So are you replicating what that other person is going to be doing?

MR. SHEPHERD:  You asked for an undertaking, what is the natural gas use over this period of time.  The evidence on the record is it's zero after a certain point.  However, you want the numbers in between.  We will provide you with an estimate and an explanation of how we got there.

MR. KEIZER:  But not the actual numbers that underpin this graph on figure -- on page 116?

MR. SHEPHERD:  We will estimate them.  You asked for an estimate.  It is our evidence we will give you the best information we can give you.

MR. KEIZER:  And so in providing that estimate, will you be setting out all assumptions and all calculations?

MR. SHEPHERD:  We're happy to do that, yes.

MR. KEIZER:  As well as to the extent there is any models or other things that underpin those calculations of estimates, that you will also produce those?

MR. SHEPHERD:  We will use our best efforts.

MR. KEIZER:  Well, no.  If you've got them, then you should give them.  Not whether or not you are -- you have use best efforts to do that.

If you employ them for purposes of your estimate, then you should provide it.

MR. SHEPHERD:  We will give you the assumptions and how we got there.  And to the extent that there are calculations underlying them, we will provide those.

If there are models in existence, we will provide those.  What we won't do is create new models for you.

MR. KEIZER:  Fine.  And you will -- well, I am assuming since you don't have the information, you have to create something because you don't want to get it from the consultant which you are relying on.  Correct?

MR. SHEPHERD:  Sorry?

MR. KEIZER:  In other words, you're not going to go to the consultant that actually created this information here.

MR. SHEPHERD:  No.

MR. KEIZER:  You're not getting any of the information related to this.  What you're saying is you will create an estimate which is somehow independent of that.  Is that what you intend to do?

MR. SHEPHERD:  City of Ottawa does not have the ratepayers covering all of its costs to do this, unlike Enbridge.  So, no, we are not going to go and retain a consultant between now and Friday to rerun a calculation.  We are not going to do that.

MR. KEIZER:  To the extent the consultant may have the data that is readily available, would you not be prepared to go and ask if he could provide the data in the absence of paying for it?

MR. SHEPHERD:  Mr. Keizer --


MR. KEIZER:  Are you not going to ask that question?

MR. SHEPHERD:  Mr. Keizer, we will give you the best information we can give you.  You can then deal with it as you wish.

MR. FLETCHER:  I will maybe just add here -- Mike Fletcher from the City of Ottawa -- the consultant's report includes data, model and assumption report that explains the basis of many calculations.

I would anticipate answering the question by relying on the assumptions that were employed and specified in that report.

MR. KEIZER:  And could you provide that report?

MR. FLETCHER:  It's public.

MR. KEIZER:  It's public.  Could you provide it on the record in any event, since it is in your report?

MR. SHEPHERD:  We're happy to do so.  Is that a separate undertaking or the same one?

MR. KEIZER:  It is a separate undertaking, so can we have that one marked.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Let's mark that one as JT2.5, that means you're still working out the details of the next undertaking, is that right?
UNDERTAKING NO. JT2.5:  TO FILE THE DOCUMENT REFERRED TO IN THE INTERROGATORY RESPONSE


MR. KEIZER:  Yes.  So in respect of the estimate or the information you are going to give us related to the emissions over this period, you have indicated that you will provide to us an estimate of that -- of the gas usage with respect to that period, and provide to us any assumptions or calculations that were used to derive that gas usage.  Correct?

MR. SHEPHERD:  We will do that.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  We will make that one undertaking JT2.6.


UNDERTAKING NO. JT2.6:  TO PROVIDE AN ESIMATE OF NATURAL GAS USAGE WITH RESPECT TO THE RELEVANT PERIOD, AND PROVIDE ANY ASSUMPTIONS OR CALCULATIONS USED TO DERIVE THAT NATURAL GAS USAGE


MR. ELSON:  I am wary of stepping in here, but if there is a bit more clarity between fossil gas and renewable -- there's been a long discussion about natural gas and gas, and I wasn't clear, at least when we were talking about fossil fuel-based gas and renewable natural gas.

I will just throw that on the record.  It is confusing to me.

MR. SHEPHERD:  We will be clear.  Our undertaking is for the natural gas line on this, to advise what the cubic meters are.  To the extent that any of that natural gas line is renewable natural gas, we will so advise.

But I think the answer is going to be zero.

MR. KEIZER:  Can I go to Staff 6 -- actually, no.  Sorry, not Staff 6.  Can I go to Enbridge 8, please?  In this interrogatory -- sorry.  There is a bit of an echo.  I'm not sure why.

In this interrogatory, we asked questions with respect to a table that appeared in your prefiled evidence at 127.  And there was -- it related to projects undertaken in the period 2020 to 2025.

What we asked for was information that would give a sense as to where those projects were currently, and we had asked that you would provide some kind of actuals and -- sorry, there was a typo in the interrogatory.  It should say 2020 to 2021 -- of the actual GHG reductions and then any revised forecasts for 2022 to 2025, and then also a breakdown by source.

And you indicated that the additional breakdown couldn't be provided within the time and resources that are available to you.

And if you want, we can bring that table up on the screen just to make sure you have it in front of you, out of fairness.  That is at page 127 of your evidence.  There it is.

And so I guess my question is, you indicated that it was too time consuming.  But you set these as targets, these are programs that you are pursuing.

Would you not be monitoring what the progress was with respect to these, such that you could provide the responses that were asked for by Enbridge.

MR. SHEPHERD:  We have given our answer, Mr. Keizer.  Do you have a question of clarification?  Because right now that is just a cross-examination question.

MR. KEIZER:  Oh, come on, Mr. Shepherd.  I have a clarification question and that is, you said you don't have the time and resources available to do it.

My question is, how is that the case that these are your programs and you should be tracking your programs.

So do you not track your programs?

MR. FLETCHER:  In answer to that, the metrics you see here are not stated in gas usage.  They're stated in number of renovations, number of retrofits, and number of changes of appliances and those would be the metrics we employ.

MR. KEIZER:  So when you -- on the column that says cumulative GHG reduction requirements, what does that represent then, if that is not what you are measuring?

MR. FLETCHER:  That represents another measure, but it wasn't identified as a metric.

MR. KEIZER:  So you don't really keep track of what your success rate is relative to those requirements, is that right?

MR. FLETCHER:  I anticipate we won't until we remodel our emissions, and we won't do that on an annual basis because of cost.

I think a more prudent approach and more tax-payer friendly approach will be to follow the metrics we stated and that's why we did that.

MR. KEIZER:  Understood.  Can you go to Enbridge 9, please?  Here you indicated in your evidence that you identified and adopted 39 GHG reduction programs in order to achieve a hundred percent reduction objectives.  We asked you to provide a list of the 39 programs.

Again you answered the same way, which is, well, we don't have the time and we don't have the resources to do it.

But I guess I again go back to the same conclusion, these are your programs.  Do you not have any of the information related to these programs that we sought in paragraphs A through E?

MR. SHEPHERD:  Can you go back up to the question, please?  So the answer to the question, Mr. Keizer, is not that we don't track our programs.  The answer is -- you've asked for a great deal of detail and we simply don't have the time to provide that detail.

MR. KEIZER:  But look, if you are going to put evidence into the proceeding and ask the OEB to rely on the evidence, I don't think it is sufficient to say we don't need to give you more information because we don't have the time.  If that's the case, no one would be bothered pursuing these proceedings or spending the time being responsive to the Board.

The point is you relied on a fact.  You indicated you had 39 programs.  We have asked for a list of those programs, and we are asking you to identify the programs and their status, identify if they have been or have not been implemented, all of the things which is readily within your knowledge and your witness's knowledge and availability.

So it is not sufficient to say I don't have time.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Well, actually, Mr. Keizer, you think the same rules should apply to a customer coming before the Board saying, this is what we're doing, and Enbridge, which has a team of, what, 50 people available to do this?

The City of Ottawa does not, and is not going to be told that it has to spend a whole lot of money in order to tell the Board what it is doing.

MR. KEIZER:  First of all, I am not going to get into an argument about this, but in my view that if you are going to take the step forward of presenting evidence before a quasi-judicial tribunal and you provide the respect it's due, and provide the information that is requested that is relevant.  It is entirely relevant, since 39 programs were actually part of your evidence, and it is on which you rely for the evidence of the emissions reduction, and to the extent that you have it within your knowledge.  These are your programs.  These are information that is sought here.  It is not unusual and not inordinate.

So I am asking again, will you be able to provide the information for -- within your --


MR. SHEPHERD:  And the answer is, no, we are not going to provide it.  And we provided the best information we can with the resources that are available.

If you wish to go to the Board and say to the Board, please strike this evidence because they won't spend enough time on it, then you -- feel free to do that.

MR. KEIZER:  But you are not disagreeing as to its relevance?

MR. SHEPHERD:  No.  We're not disagreeing that it is relevant.  We're saying it is beyond the resources of the witness.

MR. KEIZER:  Right.

MR. FLETCHER:  Mike Fletcher, City of Ottawa.  I might just add in the answer we explain we organized the 39 programs subsequently, the 20, and what were loosely called programs scrubbed by the consultant as we considered how to action what the consultant suggested we need to do.

And thank you for scrolling down.  That's right.  We realized the way to proceed was to summarize them into 20 project overviews, which were more actionable, which is a more actionable approach, and that we just discussed previously, in the last question, and that's what we're working towards and tracking, again, because it is just more actionable and it's a rational way to organize the work.

MR. KEIZER:  So what is a project overview?

MR. FLETCHER:  Mike Fletcher, City of Ottawa.  Project overview is a high-level charter.  So in the city we typically use charters when projects are fairly large, they will involve multiple departments, staff from different departments, possibly financing from different departments, and in that way everybody knows who is doing what, where the money is coming from.

A project overview is just a high-level version of that.  The project overviews were useful before Energy Evolution went to committee and council, because they allowed us as planning staff to interact with a lot of the operations staff whose lives would be impacted by Energy Evolution, and propose something to committee in council that they could live with.

So that's why we took a project overview approach.

MR. KEIZER:  And still that project overview is not a project.  It is just a project charter?

MR. FLETCHER:  That is correct.  You can think of it that way, yeah, that's right.

MR. KEIZER:  And so I think that is what you indicated.

MR. FLETCHER:  Yes.

MR. KEIZER:  And then, so are there projects underneath the project charter, or you haven't got to that point yet?

MR. FLETCHER:  So Mike Fletcher, City of Ottawa.  Yes, there is projects under the project overviews and there is completed projects under the project overviews.

MR. KEIZER:  And so would those projects relate back to the original 39 projects that you had said here in the evidence that you relied on?

MR. FLETCHER:  Yes, they would.

MR. KEIZER:  And so that information is available to you because you must report on them on a reasonably regular basis to council or to others; is that right?

MR. FLETCHER:  That's right.  Well, for clarity, we report through the Climate Change Master Plan annually, and there may be ad hoc requests other than annually, and again, the focus would be on the project overviews, not the original 39, which were more directed by the consultant.

MR. KEIZER:  So those 39 don't exist any more; is that correct?

MR. FLETCHER:  They still exist.

MR. KEIZER:  They still exist?  But they just now are under various charters?

MR. FLETCHER:  High-level charters or in some cases specific charters and in some other cases completed works that are now programs in operation, which are described in our evidence.

MR. KEIZER:  So the information is there.  It will be as indicated by Mr. Shepherd, though you aren't prepared to provide that information as requested because you don't have the time to do it.  Is that correct?

MR. SHEPHERD:  Well, no.  Sorry.  Mr. Keizer, what you asked for was a great deal of detail on things like emissions reductions by source, street addresses of every building, and so on.  A lot of detail in the question.

What we have said is, it is too much level of detail for us to be able to provide reasonably.  So what we've done instead is we've said, here's what we do have that explains it, and we've provided a link to it.

MR. KEIZER:  Yes.  No, you provided me the charters, but it is obvious you are not prepared to give relevant information, so I will move on.

Can I go to Enbridge 11.  I just want to be mindful of my time here.  Just to scroll down, in part C, and I was just curious as to one of the phrases you indicated here.  This I guess must, I assume, relate to your deep retrofit, and -- but you were talking about here the -- you're talking about window replacements, which reduces gas consumption by 25 percent.

And then you said "this has not been modelled because doing so is moot".  And I guess I am trying to understand.  What do you mean by "doing so is moot"?  I don't understand.

MR. FLETCHER:  Mike Fletcher, City of Ottawa.  So it is moot to the extent that once we know we're going to retain a building -- not demolish or sell it -- and we know it therefore needs to contribute to the average requirement of a 60 to 70 percent decrease in thermal energy demand, we know we have to do the windows.

The windows in a building have a very low thermal resistance value compared to almost all of the other components of the building, such as walls and the roof.

So therefore, if we're going to get close to the target, being able to do so without addressing the windows is impossible.

MR. KEIZER:  Right.  So what is moot is the question about whether you do the windows or not.  Is that correct?

MR. FLETCHER:  Correct.  Yes.

MR. KEIZER:  Understood.  Can I go to Enbridge 13.  So in this -- sorry.  I will wait until it gets brought up on the screen.

So this was -- you had indicated at page 7, I believe, that the locations set out at page 183 of your pre-filed evidence was -- are those that are going to contribute to your 60 to 70 percent reduction, I believe.

And we asked you to identify the street addresses for those.  And you indicated that you weren't sure about the relevance.  And I am not going to argue about the relevance, because I think it is relevant to the extent that you're saying that those addresses contribute to it, and the question is whether or not they actually contribute to this pipeline, but what Enbridge did was it, in its updated interrogatories, it, I believe, at FRPO -- sorry, that it filed which was in response to Staff -- Staff 21, sorry, that we had taken through what we knew about the City of Ottawa and whatever other information we could provide, we put together a table of the addresses that corresponded to those locations.

And you indicated that you weren't prepared to provide the addresses, and it was set out in attachment 1 to that updated IR for Staff 21.

What we are asking you to do is undertake to have a look at that list and you don't have to -- and just confirm from the City of Ottawa's perspective that what we have identified as those addresses are correct and where they're incorrect, advise that they're incorrect.

MR. SHEPHERD:  We're not -- we don't have a problem with that, except that first we would like to know what the relevance is.  We didn't say we wouldn't answer this, we said we don't know why it is relevant.  Can you explain why it is relevant?

MR. KEIZER:  Sure.  So what you indicated was that the -- at page 7, at the top of page 7 of your pre filed evidence, you said the city buildings for deep retrofit programs will reduce thermal energy demand by 60 to 70 percent or replace most existing gas heating systems with heat pumps, and that the facilities that get located
-- participating facilities of this program in the St. Laurent area will potentially result in 400-and-some-odd-million cubic metres of annual gas reduction.  And included at page 183, which is where these list of buildings are, is subject to this program and relevant to the St. Laurent area, and that the annual total potential reduction and as well as their potential reduction in natural gas use.

And so we asked for the addresses.

MR. SHEPHERD:  I understand.

MR. KEIZER:  And I'm asking you to confirm.

MR. SHEPHERD:  I understand the relevance, now, that's fine.

So you are asking us to look at your list of the buildings and see whether it is the correct list?

MR. KEIZER:  Correct.

MR. SHEPHERD:  We will do that.

MR. FLETCHER:  Mike Fletcher City of Ottawa.  I just might add that I will need from Enbridge an accurate delineation of the area considered served by St. Laurent.

MR. KEIZER:  Well, I am not asking you to do that.  I am just asking you to confirm that we have the municipal addresses correct.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So you are not asking for the witness to say these are the buildings served by St. Laurent?

MR. KEIZER:  No.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Okay, good.

MR. KEIZER:  I am asking him to confirm that we have the right location of the buildings.

MR. SHEPHERD:  We can do that.

MR. KEIZER:  Thank you.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Sorry.  If I can step in here.  That will be undertaking JT2.7.
UNDERTAKING NO. JT2.7:  IN RELATION TO ATTACHMENT 1, STAFF 21, TO CONFIRM THE CORRECTNESS OF THE ADDRESSES THAT ARE SHOWN.


MR. KEIZER:  Perfect.  That is in relation to attachment 1, Staff 21, to confirm the correctness of the addresses that are shown there.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Fine.

MR. KEIZER:  Can I just have -- can I just have one moment, just to make sure that I've got everything.  I think I am pretty well on time, so -- I think that is it for me.  Thank you very much, panel.  Much appreciated.  And we'll see, thanks.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Thanks, Mr. Keizer.  We will move on to questions from FRPO.
Examination by Mr. Quinn:


MR. QUINN:  Yes.  Good morning, panel.  I had reserved ten minutes in the event that my engineering experience could have been of assistance to the Board, with the discourse from this morning, I think I will just let the record stand as it is and it is clear enough to me.  So thank you for the opportunity, but I will pass.

MR. SHEPHERD:  So who is next?

MS. WALTER:  OEB Staff is next on the schedule.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Is that Mr. Sidlofsky or somebody else?

MR. BROPHY:  It is Mike Brophy.  I saw Zora Crnojacki on the line.  She is the case lead for it.  I am assuming it would be Zora, if she is still there.
Examination by Mr. Parkes:


MR. PARKES:  This is Mike Parkes from OEB Staff.  I have just one quick follow-up question for the witness panel.

If we could turn to the response to Staff 5, this is about reductions in gas use and GHG remissions at the Cliff Street heating plant.  In the original evidence filed, Mr. Fletcher made the reference that the Cliff Street emissions are projected to decline by 87 percent with almost all of this reduction coming from reductions in natural gas use.

Staff interrogatory part B asked for a source for that statement.  The response was that the source is the ESP program of Public Services and Procurement Canada.

I am just wondering, is there a written document for the ESP program that can support that statement?  I did not find that in the ESP presentation that was in the original evidence.

MR. FLETCHER:  Mike Fletcher, City of Ottawa.  I haven't been able to located document and I have talked to ESP staff a couple of times.

They are very much and very busy finishing off a phase of the modernization project for the federal district system.  They indicated they wouldn't have much time to help out with this.

I agree getting this information is -- I can see how it would be quite important for the Energy Board to have it.  I can take an undertaking to assist the Energy Board in getting this information, which I think is quite vital.

MR. PARKES:  Yes, if you can do that on a best efforts basis to know the results, that would be appreciated.

MR. SHEPHERD:  We will give that.

MR. PARKES:  That is all that I have.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Do we need a number for that?

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Yes.  That will be, sorry, that will be undertaking JT2.8.
UNDERTAKING NO. JT2.8:  TO PROVIDE A DOCUMENTARY SOURCE TO CONFIRM DATA ON REDUCTIONS IN GAS USE AND GHG REMISSIONS AT THE CLIFF STREET HEATING PLANT REFERRED TO IN IR STAFF 5B


MR. SHEPHERD:  Is that all of Staff questions or there are some more?

MR. PARKES:  That is all from me.  Zora, unless you have anything else?

MS. CRNOJACKI:  Thank you very much.  I think these are all of the questions from the Board Staff in the conference.  Thank you.  Thank you, Mike.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  And I believe with the end of the Staff questions, that is the end of today's session.  Is there anything outstanding?  I only ask because I haven't been here for the whole day today.

MR. SHEPHERD:  I don't believe so.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  In the absence of anything, I would like to thank everybody and thanks to our court reporter as well and this session is complete.

MR. SHEPHERD:  Thank you.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Thank you.

MR. FLETCHER:  Thank you.

MR. DICAIRE:  Thank you.

MR. PARKES:  Thank you.

MS. CRNOJACKI:  Thank you very much.
--- Whereupon proceedings concluded at 11:34 a.m.
87

